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Set 1

May 25, 2006

1. Question: After reviewing the pricing spreadsheets provided for the SEWP IV RFP, it 

appears that the last 2 tabs (Available Components and Summary) have been hard coded rather than formula driven as noted in the RFP.  It appears that the summary page includes a  $15,000,000 entry in the TOTAL field.  After several "test" data entries, it appears that the contractor's new data entry adds to the $15,000,000 number already input.  Can you please confirm and provide revised spreadsheets?  
Answer:  The Government has verified that the Pricing Exhibits work as described in Section A.3.17.5. Product Classification and the "Product Classification" section of the README file.  Placing additional subgroups and discounts as described in those sections will lower the plug value of $15,000,000 accordingly.  Please note that the discounts entered in Column 3 of the Product Classification Tab should be positive values.  A negative discount indicates that for that subcategory of products, the Government would be charged a price higher than list price and therefore the corresponding value in the Available Components Tab is increased.  If you have found when entering a positive discount in Column 3 of the Product Classification Tab that the plug value in the Available Components Tab is increased, please provide the Government with the exact pricing exhibit, row in the Product Classification Tab, and value entered in that column.
2. Question:  Will there be a vendor conference or teleconference regarding this RFP?  

Answer:  The Government does not intend to conduct a conference or teleconference.

3. Question:  Is there any scheduled industry day for SEWP IV?

Answer:  The Government does not intend to have an Industry Day.

4. Question:  Is it possible to see a list of companies who have expressed interest in 

bidding on NASA SEWP IV?

Answer:  A Registered User list is available at www.sewp.nasa.gov/sewpiv
5. Question:  A comment was received that indicated the sample product, Trend Aurora Duet, cited in Attachment A, Section 6.8.3. Test Gear has been discontinued.
Answer:  As stated in Attachment A Section 1.8. Definitions:

"The term "such as" is used to list example products which are known to meet the stated capability and for which products which also meet the stated capability may be substituted."

Therefore, the statement in Attachment A, Section 6.8.3. Test Gear:

"ISDN Test Gear such as Trend Aurora Duet" is an example and not a requirement for the product to be proposed.  Other test gear such as Sunset ISDN by Sunrise Telecom may be proposed as long as the proposed equipment meets all of the requirements stated in the RFP. 

6. Question:  RFP Reference(s):  RFP Paragraph A.3.7.a.4 “The format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in this solicitation.  The proposal content shall provide a basis for evaluation against the requirements of the solicitation. Each volume of the proposal shall specify the relevant evaluation criteria being addressed, if appropriate.” ; Paragraph A.3.7.a.5 “…..the proposal shall specifically address each listed evaluation factor and subfactor.” ;.and,   RFP Paragraph A.3.7.b.1. a Proposal Component Table:”

	(a) Cover Page, Indices, Small Business Subcontracting Plan, and Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Program
	
	Excluded


The previous versions of the draft RFP required in Draft RFP Paragraph A.3.18.3.a.5 that: “The proposal shall include a matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of the RFP are satisfied (i.e., SOW element versus offeror’s proposal page numbers). It is intended that this be a simple matrix…..this proposal matrix is excluded from the page limitations…”

We ask the Government to reinstate the draft RFP approach to providing the matrix to the evaluation criteria to the location of the proposal where it is covered.  This would be consistent to a request for a Compliance Matrix that is often requested to be submitted with proposals to aid the Government’s evaluation.  In reality, this is an index that could be covered in the Component table referenced above under “indeces” and would be excluded from the volume page count.  We were planning on providing this “Compliance Matrix/Index at the front of each volume as an index that the Government evaluators could use to make their evaluation easier in finding specifically where the RFP evaluation criteria is addressed.   We think that perhaps this is the actual Government’s intention in excluding these indices as referenced above in the Table row.  However, it is a bit confusing since the word matrix has been eliminated from the draft RFP for the final RFP. Will the Government please clarify its intent and requirements for the “evaluation compliance matrix (index)” that gives a mapping index of the evaluation criteria to the proposal for ease in evaluation, and that this index/matrix will not be page counted?    

Answer:  A matrix is not needed.  Proposals must follow the TAB structure as described in Section A.3. 

7. Question:  RFP Reference(s):  RFP Paragraph 5.10 Support Devices Specialists, Page 77; Attachment B Mandatory Deliverables, Class 6 Information Assurance Specialists,  Network/Hardware Support technician, Hardware Engineer…UPGRADES: Memory Upgrades to 288MB – Monochrome Laser Printer, Memory Upgrade to 512MB – High Speed Monochrome Multifunctional Printer, Memory upgrades to 512 MB - Multifunctional Color Printer, Memory upgrades to 512 MB – Color Large-Format Plotter on page 119; Exhibit MM6, EM6 and DF6; Pricing Exhibit for Class 6     

The Class 6 items referenced above in Paragraphs 5.10 and Attachment are listed above the Available Prodcuts line in the Class 6 Pricing Exhibit.   The RFP describes these items as mandatory bid items for the proposal. None of these items (i.e., Specialists and Upgrades) are shown in the templates MM6, EM6 and DF6.  We assume that the omissions in MM6 are to mean that NASA is not looking for a listing or description of these items in any of the Tabs in the Mission Suitability Volume, and the Government requires that they simply be priced out only and covered exclusively in the Pricing Volume.   Is this correct?  If not please clarify how Offerors are to treat the three required Support Devices Specialists and the four upgrades in the various Tabs of the Mission Suitability Volume..   

Answer:  MM, EM, and DF exhibits are one piece of the proposal and evaluation for their respective Tabs.  Pricing exhibits provide for listing of the actual mandatory products including specialists and upgrades. Offerors should discuss all appropriate aspects of their technical offerings, including specialists and upgrades, in a concise yet comprehensive narrative as described in Section A.3.13.1 Excellence of Proposed Systems (Subfactor A) and any other section as appropriate to the instructions provided.

8.  Question:  Can NASA provide an estimate of the number of MFPs ordered in the last 12 months on the current SEWP contract?

Answer:  68,000 delivery orders totaling close to $4 billion dollars have been issued in SEWP III.  The SEWP Program Office does not categorize those orders and therefore cannot provide a breakdown on how many were for one type of product or another.  This information is typically tracked at the ordering agency.
9. Question:  Can the cost of the paper be priced separately for the contractor supplied and maintained models?

Answer:  For the mandatory line items for the contractor supplied and maintained models, paper and other consumable products must be included in the price.  There are also mandatory line items for paper.  Other types of configurations and pricing for paper, MFPs, other consumables, etc. can be offered in the Available Components.

10. Question:  If the cost of paper is to be included in the cost for the contractor supplied and maintained models, does the vendor provide the required paper and staples to cover the actual usage, or are they required to deliver the paper and staples indicated on page 125 of the RFP automatically for each MFP, whether it is used or not?

Answer:  The mandatory systems are sample systems.  The actual deliverable requirements will be defined at the Delivery Order level.  For pricing purposes of the mandatory systems only, the stated requirement that delivery of the consumables be automatic should be part of the mandatory pricing.

12. Question:  On page 108 of the RFP under Section 10.1.1, the stated scan resolution is 200 to 600 dpi.  However, on Exhibit MM11, line 10.1.1.a indicates 200 to 1,200 dpi resolution.  We checked every brand of currently available MFPs and the highest resolution offered from any vendor is 600 dpi.  Is the listing on Exhibit MM11 a typo/error?

Answer:  As noted in the RFP, all technical requirements are as stated in the actual RFP.  If a discrepancy in the exhibit occurs, the requirement is as stated in the actual technical specifications in Attachment A.  Therefore, the RFP requirement of 200 to 600 dpi is the correct requirement.  The exhibit will be updated in an upcoming amendment.

13. Question:  Very high volume MFPs, which produce over 75,000 impressions per month, do not typically include fax functionality, since fax is a very low volume application compared to the very high volume of printing and copying these systems are placed in.  Faxing tends to interfere with the production print and copying environment at these volume levels.  

Answer:  These are the mandatory requirements for the base systems only. Offerors may propose other equipment in the Available Components with a depth and breadth of capabilities and technology.

14. Question:  Although we have a MFP solution that meets the specifications of the RFP, we also offer a more robust MFP solution that exceeds these specifications and would be better suited for the higher range of the stated volume specification.  Is it acceptable to propose the solution that meets the stated requirements, including the fax capability, and also propose an alternative high volume MFP that exceeds these specifications for printing, copying, and scanning, but does not include the fax capability for the reasons stated above?  We believe that fax will not be used with systems placed at these high volume levels.

Answer:  These are the mandatory requirements for the base systems only. Offerors may propose other equipment in the Available Components with a depth and breadth of capabilities and technology.

15. Question:  For the contractor supplied MFPs, is there a minimum term that the Government is required to keep these systems installed, or is the contract based on a month-to-month basis?  Can the Government cancel at any time without notice?

Answer:  This is an IDIQ contract.  Details on specific orders including any order cancellation procedures will be noted on the individual delivery orders.  

16. Question:  If a medium volume MFP consistently produces monthly output higher than the 30,000 maximum, or a high volume MFP consistently produces monthly output below the 30,000 minimum, how does the Government expect the vendor to assist in resolving this issue?

Answer:  This can be handled through requirements stated at the delivery order level.

17. Question:  On the pricing spreadsheet PE11.xls, there is only one line for purchased systems to price toner for all models.  Each of the 3 models has unique toner cartridges at a different cost and yield.  In addition, the medium volume color MFP requires 4 different toner cartridges, which are black, cyan, magenta and yellow.  Each of these is priced separately.  Should we add additional rows to price the toner for the each model proposed?

Answer:  The mandatory toner requirements are stated in Attachment A Section 10.5. MFP Consumables.  As stated in the RFP, the mandatory priced line item is the price for black toner that is usable with the mandatory medium volume monochrome printer.  Other toner options along with other consumables accessories, systems, etc. can be offered in the Available Components.

18. Question:  We believe that the structure of the pricing for the contractor supplied MFPs is not the most cost effective way to acquire the MFPs.  We would like the opportunity to propose, as an alternate pricing proposal, a more cost effective structure.  Will NASA accept an alternate pricing proposal in addition to the requested pricing structure if it will provide a significant cost savings opportunity for the Government?  

Answer:  The pricing for the mandatory MFP systems must be proposed as stated in the RFP.  Alternative configurations, systems, pricing, etc. can be offered in the Available Components.

19. Question:  How many responses to the Past Performance Questionnaire is NASA looking for?
Answer:  The Government does not have a quota for Past Performance responses.

20. Question:  Regarding the above referenced Solicitation, we understand per the RFP (Section III A.3.6 Proposals Requested) that a complete and separate proposal must be submitted for each Class. However, if a contractor desires to use the same past performance for multiple classes, is it the government's intent that a separate questionnaire be filled out for each class being proposed? If so, we feel this puts an undue burden on the Government contact officer and request that one questionnaire from a Government customer be allowed to be used for multiple submissions.

In addition, there seems to be a change between an answer to a previous question (Response ID: 27) and the final RFP (Section III A.3.15 (b) Prior Customer Evaluations). The answer to a previous question states that the responses to the questionnaire will be due two weeks after the proposal due date. The RFP states that questionnaires are due June 22, 2006 - the response date. Could you please explain why the Government changed the due date on the Past Performance Questionnaire?

Answer:  One past performance questionnaire is required regardless of the number of classes being proposed.  The Government decided to require the past performance questionnaires at the time of receipt of proposals.
21. Question:  Referencing A.3.16.6, Warranty Pricing, please clarify if warranty prices and periods are to be proposed for the Non-Mandatory Available Components.

Answer:  There are no mandatory requirements on what is provided in the Available Components. 

22. Question:  Section A.3.11.2. Structure and Content of the Mission Suitability 

Proposal requires that "Each section shall be sequentially tabbed with the title indicated on the tab."  Is labeling of the tabs subject to either the 10 point or 12 point font size limitation?  If so, it appears that to accommodate the lengthy verbiage (i.e. Tab 2), vendors would then be required to have, or purchase, custom tabs, an unnecessary cost burden on small or minority owned businesses.

Answer:  There is no requirement on how the TAB is labeled as long as it is clear and readable and only contains the TAB number; e.g. “TAB 2”

23. Question:  Referencing 5.6.3 -  ERGONOMIC KEYBOARDS states that split keyboards and standard configurations are applicable, but 5.6.3(a) requires a contoured split key design.  Are standard configuration keyboards acceptable?

5.6.3. Ergonomic Keyboards

Fully functional keyboard with focus to align the wrist of the user in a comfortable position.  Split keyboards, and standard configurations applicable.

a.        Contoured split key design
b.       Cordless

1.        FCC Class B and CE approved 

c.        Integrated trackball and mouse buttons

d.       Built-in wrist support

e.        Dual ALT, SHIFT and CONTROL keys

f.         PC and MAC version

g.       Wireless infrared (desirable) "or bluetooth"

Answer:  The mandatory keyboard must be a contoured split key design as stated.
24. Question:  Referencing 5.1.2. - LCD DISPLAY MONITOR specifies an LCD monitor but EXHIBIT MM6 5.1.2 specifies a 17 inch CRT monitor.  Should we assume that MM6 5.1.2 is supposed to state LCD, rather than CRT, as the mandatory specification?

Answer:  This was a typo in the exhibit and will be corrected in the upcoming amendment.

25. Question:  A review of the Minimum Mandatories for the Class 11 MFPs resulted in noticing that several of the reference numbers listed on the Excel spreadsheet do not align with the reference numbers stated on pages 108 - 110 of the RFP.  I was able to figure most of them out, but there is one listed on the spreadsheet that was not indicated in the RFP that I'm not sure of, and I would like to get an explanation.   

On the Minimum Mandatories spreadsheet (MM1.xls), under 10.1.3.c for each of the 3 devices, it lists a version of the following: "10.1.3.c. Med. MFP: print - multi-up".   However, item 10.1.3.c. under the Core Print Functionality on page 109 of the RFP does not match.  This listing in the RFP is the same as 10.1.3.d. on the spreadsheet (output tray selection), and there is no indication in the RFP that I can find on what "multi-up" is referring to.  Can you please provide an explanation on the mandatory "multi-up" requirement under Core Print Functionality for Class 11? 

Answer:  A corrected version of the Class 11 exhibits will be provided in the upcoming amendment.

26. Question:  In reviewing the RFP package and files, we have found several inconsistencies between the requirements document and the spreadsheets for Class 11.

        The requirements on pages 108 and 109 of the RFP are referenced. 

        The MM11, DF11, and EM11 spreadsheets are referenced. 

        10.1.2.b "Fax to E-Mail" is not in the specifications, but it is in the spreadsheet. 

        10.1.2.d, 10.1.2.e, 10.1.2.f, 10.1.2.g, 10.1.2.h, 10.1.2.i, 10.1.2.j appear to be  mis-numbered in the spreadsheets.

        10.1.3.c has been incorporated into 10.1.3.b in the requirements but is still shown as 10.1.3.c in the spreadsheets, and therefore, all follow-on items 10.1.3.d thru 10.1.3.k are mis-numbered in the spreadsheets 

        Also, 10.1.2.g has been left out of the DF11 spreadsheet as a desirable feature 

        10.1.2.c in the DF11 spreadsheet is listed as 10.1.2.b in the requirements ("Internet Faxing") 

        Please revise these documents as necessary to make them consistent. 

Answer:  A corrected version of the Class 11 exhibits will be provided in the upcoming amendment.

27.  Question:  Referencing Class 10, Page 105, Section 9.2.b. HDTV Up-converter Requirement:

a. HDTV Upconverter to allow display of all video sources in high definition resolutions

1. Following inputs:

· 3 - RCA Video jacks 

· 3 - S-VHS  jacks 

· 3 - Component video jacks (480i/480p, 720p, 1080i) 

· 1 - 125 channel cable ready TV tuner (analog) 

· 9 -  R+L RCA Audio jacks 

2. Following outputs:

· HDTV Component jack 

· R + L RCA jack 

3. Video Input: Std. Definition 480 interlaced or progressive scan 480p,  and HD sources of 720p and 1080i 

4. Video Output: HDTV 480p, 720p or 1080i resolutions as well as additional output resolutions for fixed pixel display devices of  852 x 480p, 1024 x 768, 1280 x 768p, 1366 x 768p, 1920 x 540p 

Background

Extensive research in available COTS HDTV Signal Up-converters has surfaced the following issues: 

· Very extensive research has found one product, the ADS Tech HDUP-1500 which exactly met the requirements; however that product was meant for home use and was discontinued by ADS in December of 2005, with no replacement product introduced.

· Broadcast quality COTS equipment does not use “RCA” connections for inputs.  The most common connectors used are BNC, and various Digital connections such as HDMI. While some units may include one set of RCA inputs none have been found with three RCA, three S-VHS inputs, and nine sets of RCA audio inputs.

· COTS broadcast quality HDTV signal converters do not include general purpose TV tuners, as these units are meant for use in a broadcast studio prior to a signal being broadcast or sent through a cable video system.

· Broadcast quality HD signals are generally encoded with the audio signal and transferred using digital connections to maintain quality.  No COTS converters provide large numbers of analog RCA Audio output jacks.

Question

To permit the bidding of current COTS products and to allow vendors to propose state-of-the-art products, we request the requirement be changed to the following:  

a.    HDTV Upconverter to allow display of all video sources in high definition resolutions

1.    Following inputs:

· 1 - HDTV optical fiber serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 2 - HDTV serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 2 - SDI serial component digital video

· 1 - S-VHS  jack 

· 1 - Component video jack 

· Video Input: Std. Definition 480 interlaced or progressive scan 480p,  and HD sources of 720p and 1080i 

· Auto-detecting inputs

2.    Following outputs:

· 1 - HDTV optical fiber serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 1 - HDTV serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 2 - SDI serial component digital video

· 1 - S-Video Jack

· 1 - Component video jacks 

· 1 - RGB-S 

· 1 - DVI-D for HDTV signals

· Video Output: HDTV 480p, 720p or 1080i resolutions as well as additional output resolutions for fixed pixel display devices of  852 x 480p, 1024 x 768, 1280 x 768p, 1366 x 768p, 1920 x 540p 

Answer:  There are no changes to the specifications at this time.  A final response to this question will be posted. Any adjustments will be noted in the upcoming amendment.

28. Question:  Referencing Class 10, Page 105, Section 9.2.b. HDTV Up-converter requirement:

b. HDTV Upconverter to allow display of all video sources in high definition resolutions

5. Following inputs:

· 3 - RCA Video jacks 

· 3 - S-VHS  jacks 

· 3 - Component video jacks (480i/480p, 720p, 1080i) 

· 1 - 125 channel cable ready TV tuner (analog) 

· 9 -  R+L RCA Audio jacks 

6. Following outputs:

· HDTV Component jack 

· R + L RCA jack 

7. Video Input: Std. Definition 480 interlaced or progressive scan 480p,  and HD sources of 720p and 1080i 

8. Video Output: HDTV 480p, 720p or 1080i resolutions as well as additional output resolutions for fixed pixel display devices of  852 x 480p, 1024 x 768, 1280 x 768p, 1366 x 768p, 1920 x 540p 

Background

Extensive research in available COTS HDTV Signal Up-converters has surfaced the following issues: 

· Very extensive research has found one product, the ADS Tech HDUP-1500 which exactly met the requirements; however that product was meant for home use and was discontinued by ADS in December of 2005, with no replacement product introduced.

· Broadcast quality COTS equipment does not use “RCA” connections for inputs.  The most common connectors used are BNC, and various Digital connections such as HDMI. While some units may include one set of RCA inputs none have been found with three RCA, three S-VHS inputs, and nine sets of RCA audio inputs.

· COTS broadcast quality HDTV signal converters do not include general purpose TV tuners, as these units are meant for use in a broadcast studio prior to a signal being broadcast or sent through a cable video system.

· Broadcast quality HD signals are generally encoded with the audio signal and transferred using digital connections to maintain quality.  No COTS converters provide large numbers of analog RCA Audio output jacks.

Question

To permit the bidding of current COTS products and to allow vendors to propose state-of-the-art products, we request the requirement be changed to the following:  

a.    HDTV Upconverter to allow display of all video sources in high definition resolutions

1.    Following inputs:

· 1 - HDTV optical fiber serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 2 - HDTV serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 2 - SDI serial component digital video

· 1 - S-VHS  jack 

· 1 - Component video jack 

· Video Input: Std. Definition 480 interlaced or progressive scan 480p,  and HD sources of 720p and 1080i 

· Auto-detecting inputs

2.    Following outputs:

· 1 - HDTV optical fiber serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 1 - HDTV serial component digital video (HD-SDI)

· 2 - SDI serial component digital video

· 1 - S-Video Jack

· 1 - Component video jacks 

· 1 - RGB-S 

· 1 - DVI-D for HDTV signals

· Video Output: HDTV 480p, 720p or 1080i resolutions as well as additional output resolutions for fixed pixel display devices of  852 x 480p, 1024 x 768, 1280 x 768p, 1366 x 768p, 1920 x 540p 

Answer:  There are no changes to the specifications at this time.  A final response to this question will be posted. Any adjustments will be noted in the upcoming amendment.

29. Question: Under  A.1.2. SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES TO BE FURNISHED

Category B (Complementary Products) ​ NAICS 541519

Class 9 ​  Mass Storage Devices (Service Disabled Veteran-Owned Small

Business Set-Aside) (4-6 awards

We are a small veteran owned business not disabled, does that preclude us

from bidding under that category?

Answer:  The SDVOSB set-aside is for veteran-owned small businesses that are disabled.  Please note that as a small business, you may propose in Class 6 which is a small business set-aside, and/or any of the full and open competition classes.
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